
Agenda – CC Communications Management                   March 6, 2025                               Page 1 

 
CHURCHILL COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
CC COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT 

CHURCHILL COUNTY, NEVADA 
899 South Maine Street 

Mailing Address PO Box 1390 
Fallon, Nevada 89407 

(775) 423-7171 Ext. 1215 
Fax: (775) 423-0317 

Contact Person:  Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant 
E-mail: shelly.bunyard@cccomm.co 

 
 

****NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING**** 
 

AGENDA 
PLEASE POST 

 
PLACE OF MEETING:  Churchill County Administrative Building, Commission Chambers,  

155 North Taylor Street Suite 145, Fallon, Nevada 
DATE & TIME: March 6, 2025 at 1:45 PM 

TYPE OF MEETING: Regularly Scheduled CC Communications Management Meeting 
 

If you wish to make public comment, you may provide them at the meeting or 
via email, no later than 4:30 PM the day before the meeting, to 
shelly.bunyard@cccomm.co.  

 
Notes: 

I. These meetings are subject to the provisions of Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 
Chapter 241).  Except as otherwise provided for by law, these meetings are open and 
public. 

II. Action will be taken on all Agenda items, unless otherwise noted.   
III. The Agenda is a tentative schedule.  The CC Communications Management Board 

may act upon Agenda items in a different order than is stated in this notice – so as to 
affect the people’s business in the most efficient manner possible. 

IV. In the interest of time, the CC Communications Management Board reserves the right 
to impose uniform time limits upon matters devoted to public comment. 

V. Any statement made by a member of the CC Communications Management Board 
during the public meeting is absolutely privileged. 

VI.      All persons participating in the meetings are put on notice that an audio and video 

mailto:shelly.bunyard@cccomm.co
mailto:shelly.bunyard@cccomm.co


Agenda – CC Communications Management                   March 6, 2025                               Page 2 

recording is made of these meetings. 
 

AGENDA: 
 
1. Call to Order. 

 

2. Public Comment. 
 

3. Verification of Posting of Agenda. 
 

4. Consideration and possible action re: Approval of Agenda as submitted or revised. 
 

5. Consideration and possible action re: Approval of Minutes of the meeting held on: 
 

  A. February 6, 2025 
 

6. New Business. 
 

  A. Consideration and possible action re: CC Communications 4th Quarter 
Write Offs for FY 2023/2024 in the amount of $7,360.85. 

 

  B. Consideration and possible action re: adoption of updated CC 
Communications organization chart. 

 

  
C. Consideration and possible action regarding project updates: transport 

network, FPST, Yerington, Storey County, Spring Creek/NTIA, and C15 
(Switch). 

 

  D. Consideration and possible action re: 2025-2026 Budget progress: general 
status, FTE's, revenues, OPEX, challenges, and CAPEX. 

 

7. Reports: General Manager Report. 
 

1. Human Resources 
a. retirements 
b. promotions 
c. new hires 
d. Intern summer plans 
e. company dinner. 

 
2. Business Development 

a. New Hire 
b. Product Development Focus 

i. Layer 3 
ii. VoIP phone systems 

iii. EIS 
iv. DIA 
v.  FWA 

vi. Mobile/Cellular 
c. Refine Sales Funnel/Evaluate CRM 
d. Creation of Incentive based sales position(s)  

 
3. Network Planning 

a. JSI Audit 



Agenda – CC Communications Management                   March 6, 2025                               Page 3 

b. Core redesign/Upgrades 
i. Migrate subscriber traffic from a NAT design to using CC 

Communication public IP addresses directly assigned to 
subscribers. 

ii. Migrate to new DHCP+ servers 
iii. Eliminate the use of the firewalls for subscriber traffic. 
iv. Increase the core to edge bandwidth to 100Gb. 
v. Add edge routing redundancy 

vi. Implement 2nd 100Gb route (one is up, the other remains as four 
10Gb links). 

vii. Prepare for IPV6  
 

8. Affidavit of Posting: 
 

9. Public Comment. 
 

10. Adjournment. 
 

 
STATE OF NEVADA          ) 
                                           : ss. 
County of Churchill          ) 
 

I, Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant, do hereby affirm that I posted, or caused to 
be posted, a copy of this notice of public meeting, on or before the 28th day of February, 2025 
between the hours of 1 pm and 5 pm, at the following locations in Churchill County, Nevada: 

 
1.          Churchill County Administration Building, 155 N. Taylor St., Fallon, NV; 
2.  The CC Communications Website @ www.cccomm.info; 
3.          The State of Nevada Website @ https://notice.nv.gov/.  
 
 

  
 

  

  Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant   
 

 
Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant, who was subscribed and sworn to before me this 
February 28, 2025 
 
 

  

  

 

  

  Pamela D. Moore, Deputy Clerk to the Board   

http://www.cccomm.info/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Agenda – CC Communications Management                   March 6, 2025                               Page 4 

 
 

 
Endnotes: 
Disclosures:   
*CC Communications is an equal opportunity provider and employer.   
Accommodations/Nondiscrimination: 
*Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require 
special assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the CC 
Communications Executive Office in writing at P.O. Box 1390, Fallon, NV 89407 (Attn: Shelly 
Bunyard), or by calling 775-423-7171 ext. 1215 at least two days in advance. 
*In accordance with federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its agencies, offices, employees, and institutions 
participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on 
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender expression), sexual 
orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, income derived from a public 
assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity, in 
any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all programs).  
Remedies or complaint filing deadlines vary by program or incident.  Persons with disabilities 
who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, large 
print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact the responsible agency 
[(775)423-4092] or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202)720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact 
USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800)877-8339.  Additionally, program information 
may be available in languages other than English.  To file a program discrimination complaint, 
complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at:  
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a letter 
addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  To 
request a copy of the Complaint Form, call (866)632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 1. Mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture 
   Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 
   1400 Independence Avenue, SW 
   Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; 

2. Fax:  (202)690-7442; or 
3. Email:  program.intake@usda.gov.   

Procedures: 
*The public meetings may be conducted according to rules of parliamentary procedure. 
*Persons providing public comment will be asked to state their name for the record.   
*The CC Communications Management Board reserves the right to restrict participation by 
persons in the public meeting where the conduct of such persons is willfully disruptive to the 
people’s business. 
*All supporting materials for this Agenda, previous Agendas, or Minutes are available by 
requesting a copy from the CC Communications Office, 775-423-7171 ext. 1215.  During the 
meeting, there will be one copy available for public inspection.  Additional copies are available 
by making the request from the CC Communications Office.  You are entitled to one copy of the 
supporting materials free of charge. 

http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html
mailto:program.intake@usda.gov












 

   
CC Communications 

Agenda Report 
 

 

 

Date Submitted: February 26, 2025   Agenda Item #: New Business -  A 

    Meeting Date Requested: March 6, 
2025  

    
To: Board of Churchill County Commissioners 
From: Jamie Hyde, Chief Financial Officer 
Subject Title: Consideration and possible action re: CC Communications 4th Quarter Write 

Offs for FY 2023/2024 in the amount of $7,360.85.  
  
Type of Action Requested: Accept 
  
Does this action require a Business Impact Statement? No  
   
Recommend Board Action: motion to approve the CC Communications 4th Quarter Write Offs 
for FY 2023/2024. 
   
Discussion: We are asking for approval of the 4th Quarter Write Offs for FY 2023/2024 as 
submitted. 
   
Alternatives: N/A 
   
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
   
Explanation of Impact: N/A 
   
Funding Source: Current Budget 
   
Prepared By: Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant 
   
Reviewed By:  

 

  

Date: February 26, 2025 
Mark Feest, General Manager   

 

  

Date: February 26, 2025 
Jamie Hyde, Chief Financial Officer   

   
Board Action Taken:  
Motion:    1) None   Aye: 0 



 

 

The submission of this agenda report by county officials is not intended, necessarily, to reflect agreement as to a 
particular course of action to be taken by the board; rather, the submission hereof is intended, merely, to signify 
completion of all appropriate review processes in readiness of the matter for consideration and action by the board. 

      2) None   Nay: 0 
              

  

 

          

  (Vote Recorded By)           
 
 











 

   
CC Communications 

Agenda Report 
 

 

 

Date Submitted: February 26, 2025   Agenda Item #: New Business -  B 

    Meeting Date Requested: March 6, 
2025  

    
To: Board of Churchill County Commissioners 
From: Mark Feest, General Manager / CEO 
Subject Title: Consideration and possible action re: adoption of updated CC Communications 

organization chart.  
  
Type of Action Requested: Accept 
  
Does this action require a Business Impact Statement? No  
   
Recommend Board Action: motion to approve the updated CC Communications organizational 
chart. 
   
Discussion: The attached organization chart depicts previously budgeted and authorized 
positions, whether filled or not. Recent and upcoming retirements, promotions, and hiring will 
result in one budgeted position remaining unfilled. Recent departures provided the opportunity 
to reevaluate some reporting structures, which are reflected on the new organizational chart. The 
changes clarify decision-making processes and accountability.    
   
Alternatives:  
   
Fiscal Impact: NA, as the budgeted FTE's do not change 
   
Explanation of Impact: NA, as the budgeted FTE's do not change 
   
Funding Source: Ongoing FY Budget(s)  
   
Prepared By: Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant 
   
Reviewed By:  

 

  

Date: February 27, 2025 
Mark Feest, General Manager   

 

  

Date: February 27, 2025 
Jamie Hyde, Chief Financial Officer   

   



 

 

The submission of this agenda report by county officials is not intended, necessarily, to reflect agreement as to a 
particular course of action to be taken by the board; rather, the submission hereof is intended, merely, to signify 
completion of all appropriate review processes in readiness of the matter for consideration and action by the board. 

Board Action Taken:  
Motion:    1) None   Aye: 0 
      2) None   Nay: 0 
              

  

 

          

  (Vote Recorded By)           
 
 



General 
Manager

Administrative 
Assistant  

CFO/COO

Field Operations 
Manager

Project Manager 
II

Business 
Development 

Manager

Accounting 
Manager

Warehouse 
Person

HR 
Administrator

Lead ISP 
Engineer

I&R and NOC 
Foreperson

OSP Engineer II

Marketing 
Coordinator 

System 
Administrator ISP Engineer

ISP Engineer ISP Engineer

Buildings & 
Grounds

Locator

Splicer

Splicer

Combo Tech 
(I&R)

Combo Tech 
(I&R)

Combo Tech 
(I&R)

Combo Tech 
(I&R)

Combo Tech 
(I&R)(Elko)

Combo Tech 
(I&R)(Elko)

Regulatory 
Accountant

Accountant

Accounting 
Assistant

Sales Engineer I

Account 
Executive

IT Supervisor

Programmer/
Analyst

IT Tech III
Maintenance 
and Repair 

Tech

Customer 
Service 

Supervisor

Customer 
Service Clerk

Customer 
Service Clerk

Customer 
Service Clerk 

(Business)

Customer 
Service Clerk

Combo Tech 
(NOC)

Combo Tech 
(NOC)

Combo Tech 
(NOC)

Sales Engineer II



 

   
CC Communications 

Agenda Report 
 

 

 

Date Submitted: February 26, 2025   Agenda Item #: New Business -  C 

    Meeting Date Requested: March 6, 
2025  

    
To: Board of Churchill County Commissioners 
From: Mark Feest, General Manager / CEO 
Subject Title: Consideration and possible action regarding project updates: transport network, 

FPST, Yerington, Storey County, Spring Creek/NTIA, and C15 (Switch).  
  
Type of Action Requested: Accept 
  
Does this action require a Business Impact Statement? No  
   
Recommend Board Action: None 
   
Discussion: Transport network upgrade 
- All equipment is installed 
- Testing is taking place in the Beatty area 
- There continues to be an unidentified light quality issue in the Beatty area that delays 
scheduling cutover to new system  
 
FPST 
- All documents reviewed by DA's Office and submitted to FPST for consideration at their 
council meeting. 
- 6-month plan approved 
- Once FPST council approves construction and service agreement, EAS will start 
 
Yerington  
- All agreements signed 
- EAS in progress 
 
Storey County 
- Virginia City is about 10% 
- Customer turnup will not start until Virginia City project is about 80%-90% complete. 
 
Spring Creek/NTIA 
- Tract 400 is complete 
- Working Tract 300 with anticipated completion 10/25 
- NTIA site visit March 24-25th  
- CC Communications and Elko County are working on submitting an extension request based 
upon delayed start (EAS and administration issues) and 2024 weather.  
 



 

 

The submission of this agenda report by county officials is not intended, necessarily, to reflect agreement as to a 
particular course of action to be taken by the board; rather, the submission hereof is intended, merely, to signify 
completion of all appropriate review processes in readiness of the matter for consideration and action by the board. 

C15 (Switch) 
- All equipment is installed 
- Preparation for the cutover is ongoing and anticipated to occur in late March. 
   
Alternatives: NA 
   
Fiscal Impact:  
   
Explanation of Impact:  
   
Funding Source:  
   
Prepared By: Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant 
   
Reviewed By:  

 

  

Date: February 27, 2025 
Mark Feest, General Manager   

 

  

Date: February 28, 2025 
Jamie Hyde, Chief Financial Officer   

   
Board Action Taken:  
Motion:    1) None   Aye: 0 
      2) None   Nay: 0 
              

  

 

          

  (Vote Recorded By)           
 
 



 

   
CC Communications 

Agenda Report 
 

 

 

Date Submitted: February 26, 2025   Agenda Item #: New Business -  D 

    Meeting Date Requested: March 6, 
2025  

    
To: Board of Churchill County Commissioners 
From: Mark Feest, General Manager / CEO 
Subject Title: Consideration and possible action re: 2025-2026 Budget progress: general status, 

FTE's, revenues, OPEX, challenges, and CAPEX.  
  
Type of Action Requested: Accept 
  
Does this action require a Business Impact Statement? No  
   
Recommend Board Action: None 
   
Discussion: 2025-2026 Budget progress:  
 
General Status 
 
Budget Hearing: First week of March 
Tentative Budget to County: 4/4/25 
Final Budget to County: 5/12/25 
 
FTE's 
Down one FTE year over year 
 
Revenues 
- Exiting the IPTV business results in a reduction in revenue of approximately $1.2 million. 
- Revenue from traditional telephone service will continue to decline.  
- Downward pricing pressures for broadband services will have a negative impact on revenues. 
- Revenue from new and expanding markets is projected to make up for these losses and result 
in relatively flat overall revenue year over year. 
 
OPEX 
- COLA, PERS, and insurance increases will continue to drive expenses, and we will continue to 
attempt to account for these through 
- Demands for redundancy has increased expenses in FY 2024-2025 and will continue in 2025-
2026. 
- Customer acquisition costs and customer retention costs will continue to move upwards in the 
competitive environment. 
- Past and continued reduction in staffing levels, enabled by improved network design and 
trouble ticket rates, provide an opportunity to offset some of these increases. 



 

 

The submission of this agenda report by county officials is not intended, necessarily, to reflect agreement as to a 
particular course of action to be taken by the board; rather, the submission hereof is intended, merely, to signify 
completion of all appropriate review processes in readiness of the matter for consideration and action by the board. 

- Inflation across all inputs to producing services will continue to be a challenge.  
 
Profit Transfer Hiatus 
- Current iterations indicate that a profit transfer (transfer in addition to the PILT) can be made 
in the amount of $850,000 in FY 2025-2026 
 
Cash 
- Cash projections will be down as we continue to build out Spring Creek/Elko and pursue a few 
small projects inside and outside the ILEC territory.  
 
Challenges 
 
- PERS 
- Health Insurance 
- Continuing downward pricing pressure 
- Customer acquisition costs 
- Anticipated broad economic conditions 
  - persistent inflation for nondiscretionary spending 
  - contraction of consumer spending 
 
CAPEX 
- Continuing with Spring Creek 
- Targeted City fo Elko FTTP 
- Tarana FWA 
- Small Churchill County FTTH 
- Storey County 
- FPST 
- YPT 
- Te Moak? 
- WRPT? 
   
Alternatives: NA 
   
Fiscal Impact:  
   
Explanation of Impact:  
   
Funding Source:  
   
Prepared By: Shelly Bunyard, Administrative Assistant 
   



 

 

The submission of this agenda report by county officials is not intended, necessarily, to reflect agreement as to a 
particular course of action to be taken by the board; rather, the submission hereof is intended, merely, to signify 
completion of all appropriate review processes in readiness of the matter for consideration and action by the board. 

Reviewed By:  

 

  

Date: February 27, 2025 
Mark Feest, General Manager   

 

  

Date: February 28, 2025 
Jamie Hyde, Chief Financial Officer   

   
Board Action Taken:  
Motion:    1) None   Aye: 0 
      2) None   Nay: 0 
              

  

 

          

  (Vote Recorded By)           
 
 


	1 Call to Order
	2 Public Comment
	3 Verification of Posting of Agenda
	4 Consideration and possible action re: Approval of Agenda as submitted or revised
	5 Consideration and possible action re: Approval of Minutes of the meeting held on
	A February 6, 2025
	02-06-25 Minutes - CC Communications


	6 New Business
	A Consideration and possible action re: CC Communications 4th Quarter Write Offs for FY 2023/2024 in the amount of $7,360.85.
	Agenda Report
	03-06-25 Item 6A - CC Communications

	B Consideration and possible action re: adoption of updated CC Communications organization chart.
	Agenda Report
	03-06-25 Item 6B - CC Communications

	C Consideration and possible action regarding project updates: transport network, FPST, Yerington, Storey County, Spring Creek/NTIA, and C15 (Switch).
	Agenda Report

	D Consideration and possible action re: 2025-2026 Budget progress: general status, FTE's, revenues, OPEX, challenges, and CAPEX.
	Agenda Report


	7 Reports: General Manager Report
	8 Affidavit of Posting
	9 Public Comment
	10 Adjournment

